
 

NOTE TO PERSONS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS: 
The Town of Canton does not discriminate on the basis of disability. Individuals who need auxiliary aids or an interpreter at a Town 

meeting must notify the appropriate department in advance of the meeting as soon as they are able. 

   
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting  

 Canton Planning and Zoning Commission 
Wednesday, June 15, 2016 at 7:30 pm 

Community Center, Room F 
40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, CT 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
ROLL CALL: 
 
READING OF THE LEGAL NOTICE: 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section 
7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions and modifications to outdoor lighting, and Section 9.1., Site 
Plan Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan 
District Commission, applicant/owner 
 

2. File #402; Apln #1587; 143+145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B; Special 
Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay District; 
and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-unit 
dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner  

 
3. File #448; Apln #1601; 145 Cherry Brook Road; Assessor’s Map 22; Parcel 1850145; Zone R-2; 

Special Permit, Section 3.4.G.3, height exception for architectural building elements; request to 
construct a +/- 528 sq. ft. detached garage that is 24 ft. in height; Peter Hiza, applicant; Russell and 
Renata Maglietti, owners 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ACTIONS: 
 
1. File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section 

7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions and modifications to outdoor lighting, and Section 9.1., Site 
Plan Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan 
District Commission, applicant/owner 
 

2. File #402; Apln #1587; 143+145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B; Special 
Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay District; 
and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-unit 
dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner 

 
3. File #448; Apln #1601; 145 Cherry Brook Road; Assessor’s Map 22; Parcel 1850145; Zone R-2; 

Special Permit, Section 3.4.G.3, height exception for architectural building elements; request to 
construct a +/- 528 sq. ft. detached garage that is 24 ft. in height; Peter Hiza, applicant; Russell and 
Renata Maglietti, owners 
 

OLD BUSINESS:  
  



NOTE TO PERSONS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS: 
The Town of Canton does not discriminate on the basis of disability. Individuals who need auxiliary aids or an interpreter at a Town 

meeting must notify the appropriate department in advance of the meeting as soon as they are able. 

NEW BUSINESS:  
 
1. Pre-Application Review; File #449; Apln #1602; 79 Dowd Avenue; Assessor’s Map 31; Parcel 

2160079; Zone R-2; discussion of development concepts for a town dog park; Alan Duncan, 
applicant; Canton Land Conservation Trust, Inc., owner 
 

2. File #22; Apln #1605; 211 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 31; Parcel 1010211; Zone B; Special 
Permit, Section 4.1.c.11.a, off-street parking beyond the limitations of Section 4.1.b.7.d; request to 
designate 56 parking spaces for lease to a car dealership for parking; Fred Gabrielle, applicant; 211 
Albany Turnpike, LLC, owner 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
1. Review minutes from the May 18, 2016 Regular Meeting  

2. Discussion of Possible Edits to Zoning Regulations 

a. Review of draft language pertaining to Electronic Message Board Signs 

3. Discussion of Design Regulations 

a. Review of Use Table 

4. Discussion of Subdivision Regulations Rewrite 

5. Discussion of possible update to the Standard Zoning Enforcement Procedures 

6. Discussion of complaint on wood milling at the Axe Factory 

7. Discussion of relocation of the Collinsville Streetscape benches 

8. Staff Reports: 

a. Town Planner’s Report 

b. ZEO Report 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 



NOTE TO PERSONS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS:
The Town of Canton does not discriminate on the basis of disability. Individuals who need auxiliary aids or an interpreter at a Town

meeting must notify the appropriate department in advance of the meeting as soon as they are able.

WORKING NOTES

Regular Meeting
Canton Planning and Zoning Commission
Wednesday, June 15, 2016 at 7:30 pm

Community Center, Room F
40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, CT

CALL TO ORDER: Call to order the Regular Meeting of the Canton Planning and Zoning Commission,
June 15, 2016 at ____ PM

ROLL CALL:
Commissioners Present are: _________________.
Commissioners Absent are: _________________.

David Bondanza – Regular Member
Jonathan Thiesse – Regular Member
Phil Pane – Regular Member
Lans Perry – Regular Member
John Huyghebaert – Regular Member
David Evens – Regular Member
*Vacant – Regular Member
Bill Sarmuk – Alternate Member
Kevin Baldwin – Alternate Member
Vacant – Alternate Member

* Note: Mr. August has resigned effective 6/6/16
**members indicated they will be absent

A quorum of the Commission is present?
(If a Regular Member is absent: “Mr. _______ is hereby seated for Mr. __________.”)

Modification of Agenda – No Requests

READING OF THE LEGAL NOTICE:

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section
7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions and modifications to outdoor lighting, and Section 9.1., Site
Plan Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan
District Commission, applicant/owner

___ Commissioners Seated 1.__________, 2.____________, 3.____________,

4.______________, 5._____________, 6._____________, 7._____________

___ Alternates Seated a._____________, b._______________, c._____________, and for whom

The public hearing opened on May 18
th
. The Commission has 35 days to close the hearing (June

21
st
, 2016). The Applicant was given instruction at the last meeting to return with a presentation

of the work that had occurred that is seeking approval. Staff sent follow up reminders on
information to be provided on 6/6/16)



2

___ Applicant Presentation
___ Questions by Commission of Applicant
___ Allow Recess for Public Review of Presented Documents/ Items (if necessary)
___ Open the Floor for Public Comment
___ Staff Input
___ Additional Questions by Commission of Staff or Applicant
___ Applicant’s Summation/ Rebuttal
___ Close Public Hearing

Motions for consideration:

Motion: to close the public hearing for File #5; Apln. #1582

Or

Motion: to continue the public hearing for File #5; Apln. #1582 (continuation will require an
extension by the applicant)

A motion is made,
is there a second?
All in favor? All Opposed? Any Abstentions?
Motion passes / fails

2. File #402; Apln #1587; 143+145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B; Special
Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay District;
and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-unit
dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner

___ Commissioners Seated 1.__________, 2.____________, 3.____________,

4.______________, 5._____________, 6._____________, 7._____________

___ Alternates Seated a._____________, b._______________, c._____________, and for whom

The opening of this hearing was postponed from the last meeting to June 15, 2016 to allow for
notices to be run.

This application was received at the April 20, 2016. At that time an advisory consultation from the
Collinsville Historic District Commission (CHDC) was requested. The CHDC issued the following
at their May meeting:
http://www.townofcantonct.org/filestorage/6662/7064/7068/26514/05.10.16_Collinsville_Historic_
District_Minutes-draft.pdf

A May 16, 2016 letter from the CHDC Chairman is also in the file. The recommendations of the
CHDC should be considered by the Commission as possible conditions.

The Commission has 35 days to close the hearing (July 20
th
, 2016).

___ Applicant Presentation
___ Questions by Commission of Applicant
___ Allow Recess for Public Review of Presented Documents/ Items (if necessary)
___ Open the Floor for Public Comment
___ Staff Input
___ Additional Questions by Commission of Staff or Applicant
___ Applicant’s Summation/ Rebuttal
___ Close Public Hearing



3

As a resubmission of a prior approval, the August 16, 2007 staff report was distributed to the
Commission at the April meeting. Substantive changes from the 2007 proposal appear to be
limited to the amount of the original structure that will be retained as opposed to demolished and
rebuilt.

Under the 2014 regulations, two families are permitted by zoning permit/ site plan approval.
However multiple dwelling units require a special permit. As this particular property contains one
two family dwelling and a second two family dwelling is proposed, it has been classified as
multiple dwelling units for the purpose of this application.

Notices – Documentation of the posting of sign and abutter notices has been submitted.
Sewer - approval was granted at the April WPCA meeting.
Water - No response
Fire/ Egress - reviewed by Building Official and found to be satisfactory. Recommends relocating
meter boxes for gas and electric so they are not located underneath the main exit for the second
floor.
Parking - As proposed the application satisfies the parking requirements of Section 7.2.C.

The Commission should review the conditions of approval of the Commission October 17, 2007
approval on this matter (incorporated in the November 15, 2007 approval letter in the file).

Motion for consideration:

Motion: to close the public hearing for File #402; Apln. #1587

A motion is made,
is there a second?
All in favor? All Opposed? Any Abstentions?
Motion passes / fails

3. File #448; Apln #1601; 145 Cherry Brook Road; Assessor’s Map 22; Parcel 1850145; Zone R-2;
Special Permit, Section 3.4.G.3, height exception for architectural building elements; request to
construct a +/- 528 sq. ft. detached garage that is 24 ft. in height; Peter Hiza, applicant; Russell and
Renata Maglietti, owners

___ Commissioners Seated 1.__________, 2.____________, 3.____________,

4.______________, 5._____________, 6._____________, 7._____________

___ Alternates Seated a._____________, b._______________, c._____________, and for whom

The opening of this hearing was noticed by the Land Use Office for this meeting. The applicant
representative has posted the required sign. The applicant has verbally informed the Land Use
Office that abutter notices will not be sent. This application is therefore presently defective. It is
recommended the opening of the hearing be postponed and the applicant be advised by the
Commission that abutter notices must be sent.

Motion for consideration:

Motion: to postpone the opening of the public hearing for File #448; Apln. #1601 to the
July 20

th
regular meeting.

A motion is made,
is there a second?
All in favor? All Opposed? Any Abstentions?
Motion passes / fails



4

REGULAR MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING ACTIONS:

1. File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section
7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions and modifications to outdoor lighting, and Section 9.1., Site
Plan Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan
District Commission, applicant/owner

___ Discussion
___ Do I have a motion?

Draft Motion:

Moved that the Commission hereby approves File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue;
Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section 7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions
and modifications to outdoor lighting, and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to install
CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan District Commission,
applicant/owner

This approval with conditions and modifications is made, in part, on the basis of, and the
Commission’s reliance upon, the application form dated March 21, 2016; information received at
a public hearing commenced on May 18, 2016, continued to June 15, 2016 and closed on that
date; and upon the following documentation submitted by the Applicant or others during the
course of the proceedings on the application:

Drawings:

1. Sheet 1 of 3; Site Electrical & Data Infrastructure Improvements; Canton and New Hartford;
Prepared by The Metropolitan District; Prepared for the Nepaug Dam & Collinsville Water
Treatment Facility; Dated October 27, 2015

2. Sheet 2 of 3; Site Electrical & Data Infrastructure Improvements; Canton and New Hartford;
Prepared by The Metropolitan District; Prepared for the Nepaug Dam & Collinsville Water
Treatment Facility; Dated October 27, 2015

3. Sheet 3 of 3; Site Electrical & Data Infrastructure Improvements; Canton and New Hartford;
Prepared by The Metropolitan District; Prepared for the Nepaug Dam & Collinsville Water
Treatment Facility; Dated October 27, 2015

Correspondence:

1. Town of Canton – Zoning Development Application for File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington
Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification;
request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan District
Commission, applicant/owner

2. Site plan application checklist
3. Email from Chris Levesque to Renee Narducci; dated 3/18/16
4. Narrative
5. HySecurity SlideDriver

TM
Slide Gate Operator sales slick

6. Chain link fence specifications; dated 5/28/03
7. Hapco light pole specifications
8. Lumark lighting specifications
9. Lumark lighting images (2 total)
10. Copy of approval letter for IWWA File #12-14-1118AA; dated 12/23/14
11. Copy of payment; check #32022740
12. Email from Neil Pade to Renee Narducci and Emily Anyzeski regarding application

modifications; dated 4/6/16



5

13. Email from Renee Narducci to Chris Levesque regarding application modifications; dated
4/8/16

14. Email from Chris Levesque to Renee Narducci regarding lighting information; dated 4/18/16
15. Cooper Lighting Photometric Survey; dated 4/18/16 (2 pages)
16. Abutter list
17. Sign affidavit; dated 4/22/16
18. Copy of the abutter notice; dated 4/25/16
19. Certificates of mailing

This approval with conditions and modifications is granted because the Commission finds that the
application, as conditioned and modified by and inclusive of the stipulations of this approval,
would comply with the following:

1. Special Permit criteria of Section 9.2.E;
2. Special Permit for modifications to outdoor lighting Section 7.4.D.3.a

This approval is effective July 5, 2016 (20 Days from approval date) and UPON THE
RECORDING OF AN APPROVAL LETTER AND A CERTIFICATE OF ACTION WITH THE
TOWN CLERK.

The Commission hereby grants this approval subject to the following conditions, modifications,
restrictions, and safeguards:

1. A mylar recording IS/ IS NOT required;?
2.
3.
4. All work in connection with this site plan shall be completed within five years after the

approval, or June 15, 2020 in accordance with Section 9.1.G.2 of the regulations;
5. The failure to record this special permit within twelve (12) months of approval shall void the

special permit in accordance with Section 9.2.H.1 of the regulations;
6. The approved use must be conducted on the site within thirty-six (36) months from the date

of approval or the approval shall expire.
7. This approval shall be binding upon the Applicant / developer, heirs, assigns, and grantees.

A motion is made, is there a second?
All in favor? All Opposed? Any Abstentions?
Motion passes / fails

2. File #402; Apln #1587; 143+145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B; Special
Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay District;
and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-unit
dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner

___ Discussion
___ Do I have a motion?

Draft Motion:

Moved that the Commission hereby approves File #402; Apln #1587; 143+145 Main Street;
Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B; Special Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by
Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay District; and Section 9.1., Site Plan
Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-unit dwelling; Russell Bush,
applicant/owner



6

This approval with conditions and modifications is made, in part, on the basis of, and the
Commission’s reliance upon, the application form dated April 1, 2016; information received at a
public hearing commenced on June 15, 2016 and closed on that date; and upon the following
documentation submitted by the Applicant or others during the course of the proceedings on the
application:

Drawings:

1. Sheet #1; Schematic Site Plan; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush;
Prepared by David Whitney Consulting Engineers, LLC; dated 8/6/07

2. Drawing #1; Perspectives; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
3. Drawing #2; Elevations; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
4. Drawing #3; First Floor Plan; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
5. Drawing #4; Second Floor Plan; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
6. Drawing #5; Foundation Plan; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
7. Drawing #6; Section Thru Bedroom Wing; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell

Bush
8. Drawing #7; Section Thru Living Room; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
9. Drawing #8; Details; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush

Correspondence:

1. Town of Canton Planning/Zoning Development Application – File #402; Apln #1587; 143-
145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B/CBD; Special Permit,
Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay
District; and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing
building into a multi-unit dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner

2. Copy payment; check #1009
3. Site Plan Application checklist
4. Special Permit Application checklist
5. Assessor’s card for 143-145 Main Street
6. Abutter map
7. List of abutters
8. Letter from Russell Bush to the PZC regarding the proposed scope of work; dated

3/28/16
9. Copy of letter from the CHDC to the Zoning Commission regarding the proposed scope

of work; dated 8/13/07
10. Copy of approval letter for File #402; Apln #1205; dated 11/15/07
11. Copy of approval letter for extension request for File #402; Apln #1205; dated 10/20/08
12. Email from Renee Narducci to Russell Bush regarding outstanding items; dated 4/11/16
13. Copy of the abutter notice; received by the Land Use Office on 4/20/16
14. Copy of certified mailing receipts
15. Town of Canton WPCA Capacity Review Application; dated 4/20/16
16. Letter from WPCA Superintendent Roger Ignazio to Russell Bush regarding future sewer

connection; dated 4/25/16
17. Draft minutes from the 4/20/16 PZC regular meeting
18. Picture of the public hearing sign located on the property; received 5/3/16
19. Signed public hearing affidavit; dated 5/5/16
20. Signed certification of notice; dated 5/5/16
21. Letter from the CHDC to the PZC stating their endorsement of the project; dated 5/16/16
22. Copy of the CHDC application for a certificate of appropriateness; dated 4/20/16
23. Renderings/photos depicting current appearance and proposed concept (8 total)
24. Town of Canton legal notice



7

This approval with conditions and modifications is granted because the Commission finds that the
application, as conditioned and modified by and inclusive of the stipulations of this approval,
would comply with the following:

1. The special permit criteria of Section 9.2.E; and
2. The standards of the Collinsville Business District Overlay, Section 6.1

This approval is effective July 5, 2016 (20 Days from approval date) and UPON THE
RECORDING OF AN APPROVAL LETTER AND A CERTIFICATE OF ACTION WITH THE
TOWN CLERK.
The Commission hereby grants this approval subject to the following conditions, modifications,
restrictions, and safeguards:

1. A mylar recording IS/ IS NOT required;?
2. The conditions of the Commission’s October 17, 2007 approval on this matter are

incorporated by reference except as may be modified by this approval;
3. The recommendations of the Collinsville Historic District made on Advisory Application

#16-03 on May 10, 2016 are incorporated by reference;
4. The applicant shall relocate the exterior utility meters (electric and gas) from underneath

the stairwell serving second floor ingress/ egress;
5. The applicant shall demonstrate availability of potable water prior to the issuance of

building permits;
6. All work in connection with this site plan shall be completed within five years after the

approval, or June 15, 2020 in accordance with Section 9.1.G.2 of the regulations;
7. The failure to record this special permit within twelve (12) months of approval shall void

the special permit in accordance with Section 9.2.H.1 of the regulations;
8. The approved use must be conducted on the site within thirty-six (36) months from the

date of approval or the approval shall expire.
9. This approval shall be binding upon the Applicant / developer, heirs, assigns, and

grantees.

A motion is made, is there a second?
All in favor? All Opposed? Any Abstentions?
Motion passes / fails

3. File #448; Apln #1601; 145 Cherry Brook Road; Assessor’s Map 22; Parcel 1850145; Zone R-2;
Special Permit, Section 3.4.G.3, height exception for architectural building elements; request to
construct a +/- 528 sq. ft. detached garage that is 24 ft. in height; Peter Hiza, applicant; Russell and
Renata Maglietti, owners – No action

OLD BUSINESS: None

NEW BUSINESS:

1. Pre-Application Review; File #449; Apln #1602; 79 Dowd Avenue; Assessor’s Map 31; Parcel
2160079; Zone R-2; discussion of development concepts for a town dog park; Alan Duncan,
applicant; Canton Land Conservation Trust, Inc., owner

The non-profit is looking to get moving on the Dog Park proposal and is looking to make land use
commissions aware of their ideas and solicit initial guidance.

This is a non-binding informal discussion under CGS 7-159b



8

2. File #22; Apln #1605; 211 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 31; Parcel 1010211; Zone B; Special
Permit, Section 4.1.c.11.a, off-street parking beyond the limitations of Section 4.1.b.7.d; request to
designate 56 parking spaces for lease to a car dealership for parking; Fred Gabrielle, applicant; 211
Albany Turnpike, LLC, owner

This application is being received this evening. It has been submitted to address a NOV issued by
the ZEO. This application has an IWWA component that was received on June 9, 2016 and is
tabled until July 14, 2016.

Motion for consideration:

Motion: to receive File #22, Apln #1605 at 211 Albany Turnpike and schedule a public
hearing for the July 20

th
regular meeting.

A motion is made,
is there a second?
All in favor? All Opposed? Any Abstentions?
Motion passes / fails

OTHER BUSINESS:

1. Review minutes from the May 18, 2016 Regular Meeting
2. Discussion of Possible Edits to Zoning Regulations

a. Review of draft language pertaining to Electronic Message Board Signs
3. Discussion of Design Regulations

a. Review of Use Table (See Page 82 of Draft Form Based Code)
http://www.townofcantonct.org/filestorage/19178/19230/Canton_Form-Based_Code_Draft_9-23-
15.pdf

4. Discussion of Subdivision Regulations Rewrite
5. Discussion of possible update to the Standard Zoning Enforcement Procedures

Canton’s recently updated Standard Zoning Enforcement Procedures was a featured
presentation before the membership of the Connecticut Association of Zoning Enforcement
Officials last month. The SZEP’s were highly regarded and received many compliments.
Two case studies were also presented (Harts Corner and 20 Canton Springs Road)

The following guidance was offered by the professionals at CAZEO:
• Add language on the bottom of the OOV that it is not appealable, and does not constitute

a decision of the ZEO.
• Add language to the SZEP’s that any action of the ZEO, or decision on an action of the

ZEO that is appealable to Superior Court may be reviewed by the PZC and the PZC may
authorize the filing of such an appeal.

• Amend SZEPs to stop leading with enforcement actions under 8-12 and bypass ZBA
completely by only sending out citations under 8-12a.

The ZEO can be made available to present the case studies to the PZC upon request.

6. Discussion of complaint from on wood milling at the Axe Factory
7. Discussion of relocation of the Collinsville Streetscape benches
8. Staff Reports:

a. Town Planner’s Report
Skate Park Application

b. ZEO Report

ADJOURNMENT:



Exhibit List for:

File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section
7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions and modifications to outdoor lighting, and Section 9.1., Site Plan
Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan District
Commission, applicant/owner

List as of June 10, 2016

List of Drawings

1. Sheet 1 of 3; Site Electrical & Data Infrastructure Improvements; Canton and New Hartford; Prepared
by The Metropolitan District; Prepared for the Nepaug Dam & Collinsville Water Treatment Facility;
Dated October 27, 2015

2. Sheet 2 of 3; Site Electrical & Data Infrastructure Improvements; Canton and New Hartford; Prepared
by The Metropolitan District; Prepared for the Nepaug Dam & Collinsville Water Treatment Facility;
Dated October 27, 2015

3. Sheet 3 of 3; Site Electrical & Data Infrastructure Improvements; Canton and New Hartford; Prepared
by The Metropolitan District; Prepared for the Nepaug Dam & Collinsville Water Treatment Facility;
Dated October 27, 2015

Correspondence:

1. Town of Canton – Zoning Development Application for File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue;
Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to install
CCTV cameras, site lighting and security fencing; Metropolitan District Commission, applicant/owner

2. Site plan application checklist
3. Email from Chris Levesque to Renee Narducci; dated 3/18/16
4. Narrative
5. HySecurity SlideDriver

TM
Slide Gate Operator sales slick

6. Chain link fence specifications; dated 5/28/03
7. Hapco light pole specifications
8. Lumark lighting specifications
9. Lumark lighting images (2 total)
10. Copy of approval letter for IWWA File #12-14-1118AA; dated 12/23/14
11. Copy of payment; check #32022740
12. Email from Neil Pade to Renee Narducci and Emily Anyzeski regarding application modifications;

dated 4/6/16
13. Email from Renee Narducci to Chris Levesque regarding application modifications; dated 4/8/16
14. Email from Chris Levesque to Renee Narducci regarding lighting information; dated 4/18/16
15. Cooper Lighting Photometric Survey; dated 4/18/16 (2 pages)
16. Abutter list
17. Sign affidavit; dated 4/22/16
18. Copy of the abutter notice; dated 4/25/16
19. Certificates of mailing
20. Draft minutes from the 4/20/16 PZC regular meeting
21. Town of Canton legal notice
22. Proof of legal notice from the Hartford Courant
23. Municipal abutter notices (2 total)
24. Email from Renee Narducci to Chris Levesque regarding requested additional information; 5/10/16
25. Copy of payment for special permit fee; check #32023159
26. Email from Chris Levesque to Renee Narducci providing project overview; dated 5/18/16
27. Email from Renee Narducci to Chris Levesque regarding Commissioner’s comments from the 5/18/16

regular meeting; dated 5/31/16























































































































- 1 -

Exhibit List for:

File #402; Apln #1587; 143-145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B/CBD;
Special Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay
District; and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-
unit dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner

List as of June 10, 2016

Drawings:

1. Sheet #1; Schematic Site Plan; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush; Prepared by David
Whitney Consulting Engineers, LLC; dated 8/6/07

2. Drawing #1; Perspectives; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
3. Drawing #2; Elevations; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
4. Drawing #3; First Floor Plan; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
5. Drawing #4; Second Floor Plan; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
6. Drawing #5; Foundation Plan; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
7. Drawing #6; Section Thru Bedroom Wing; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
8. Drawing #7; Section Thru Living Room; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush
9. Drawing #8; Details; 143-145 Main Street; Prepared for Russell Bush

Correspondence:

1. Town of Canton Planning/Zoning Development Application – File #402; Apln #1587; 143-145 Main
Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B/CBD; Special Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses
allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay District; and Section 9.1., Site Plan
Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a multi-unit dwelling; Russell Bush,
applicant/owner

2. Copy payment; check #1009
3. Site Plan Application checklist
4. Special Permit Application checklist
5. Assessor’s card for 143-145 Main Street
6. Abutter map
7. List of abutters
8. Letter from Russell Bush to the PZC regarding the proposed scope of work; dated 3/28/16
9. Copy of letter from the CHDC to the Zoning Commission regarding the proposed scope of work;

dated 8/13/07
10. Copy of approval letter for File #402; Apln #1205; dated 11/15/07
11. Copy of approval letter for extension request for File #402; Apln #1205; dated 10/20/08
12. Email from Renee Narducci to Russell Bush regarding outstanding items; dated 4/11/16
13. Copy of the abutter notice; received by the Land Use Office on 4/20/16
14. Copy of certified mailing receipts
15. Town of Canton WPCA Capacity Review Application; dated 4/20/16
16. Letter from WPCA Superintendent Roger Ignazio to Russell Bush regarding future sewer connection;

dated 4/25/16
17. Draft minutes from the 4/20/16 PZC regular meeting
18. Picture of the public hearing sign located on the property; received 5/3/16
19. Signed public hearing affidavit; dated 5/5/16
20. Signed certification of notice; dated 5/5/16
21. Letter from the CHDC to the PZC stating their endorsement of the project; dated 5/16/16
22. Copy of the CHDC application for a certificate of appropriateness; dated 4/20/16
23. Renderings/photos depicting current appearance and proposed concept (8 total)
24. Town of Canton legal notice
25. Proof of legal notice from the Valley Press
26. Application review comments from the Fire Marshal, Tim Tharau; dated 6/9/16





































































































































- 1 -

Exhibit List for:

File #448; Apln #1601; 145 Cherry Brook Road; Assessor’s Map 22; Parcel 1850145; Zone R-2; Special
Permit, Section 3.4.G.3, height exception for architectural building elements; request to construct a +/-
528 sq. ft. detached garage that is 24 ft. in height; Peter Hiza, applicant; Russell and Renata Maglietti,
owners

List as of June 2, 2016

Drawings:

1. Sheet 1; Survey & Site Plan for Proposed Garage; 145 Cherry Brook Road; Prepared by Robert Hiza;
Prepared for Mr. & Mrs. Maglietti; dated 3/17/16; revised 4/19/16

Correspondence:

1. Town of Canton Planning/Zoning Development Application – File #448; Apln #1601; 145 Cherry
Brook Road; Assessor’s Map 22; Parcel 1850145; Zone R-2; Special Permit, Section 3.4.G.3, height
exception for architectural building elements; request to construct a +/- 528 sq. ft. detached garage
that is 24 ft. in height; Peter Hiza, applicant; Russell and Renata Maglietti, owners

2. Copy of payment; check #1514

3. Special permit application checklist

4. Letter to the Planning and Zoning Commission from Peter Hiza explaining request; dated 5/22/16

5. Picture depicting the proposed garage

6. Signed certification of notice for the public hearing sign; dated 5/23/16

7. List of abutters

8. Map of abutters

9. Town of Canton legal notice

10. Proof of legal notice from the Valley Press

11. Email from Renee Narducci to Mrs. Maglietti regarding the need for abutter notices; dated 5/25/16

12. Sample abutter notice provided to applicant on 5/15/16

























































































































































































 

   
 
 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Regular Meeting  

 Canton Planning and Zoning Commission 
Wednesday, May 18, 2016 at 7:30 pm 

Community Center, Room F 
40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, CT 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER: The Regular Meeting of Canton Planning & Zoning Commission on May 18, 2016 was 
called to order at 7:31 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Jonathan Thiesse, David Evens, John Huyghebaert, Phil Pane, David Bondanza, Lansford 
Perry and Kevin Baldwin 
ABSENT: Bill Sarmuk and Keith August 
ALSO PRESENT: Assistant Town Planner Emily Anyzeski and Land Use Coordinator Renee Narducci 
 
A quorum of the Commission is present. 
 
Mr. Baldwin is hereby seated for Mr. August. 
 
MODIFICATION OF AGENDA: None 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
READING OF THE LEGAL NOTICE: Read by Mr. Pane. 
 
1. File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; 

Special Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington 
River Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site 
Plan Application; request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, 
applicants/owners 

 
COMMISSIONERS SEATED: Jonathan Thiesse, David Evens, John Huyghebaert, Phil Pane, David 
Bondanza, Lansford Perry and Kevin Baldwin 

 
The property owners, David and Jacqueline Mott, were present in order to answer any questions the 
commission had and discuss the revised site plan. The revised site plan depicts an alternate location 
of the footing drain, which has been moved outside of the FRPOD. Mr. David Sinish of 20 Dyer 
Avenue spoke in regards to the creation of legislation that was meant to protect the Farmington River 
and expressed a concern for the potential effects on natural resources. Mr. Sinish questioned the 
need for removal of certain trees and what mitigation measures were being considered. Mr. Mott 
explained why certain trees were being removed, and informed the Commission that he is willing to 
replant trees in order to off-set the changes in landscape.  
 
MOTION: Mr. Thiesse moved to close the public hearing for File #445; Apln #1576. Mr. Pane 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 
2. File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; 

Section 7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions and modifications to outdoor lighting, and 
Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security 
fencing; Metropolitan District Commission, applicant/owner 

 



COMMISSIONERS SEATED: Jonathan Thiesse, David Evens, John Huyghebaert, Phil Pane, David 
Bondanza, Lansford Perry and Kevin Baldwin 

 
Mr. Phil Royer, representative for MDC, was present in order to discuss the application and answer 
any questions the Commission had. He provided a brief overview of the work that was done, which 
included fencing, the installation of security cameras and additional lighting. The MDC was notified by 
Town Staff that a Special Permit was required for the lighting that was installed, as the poles exceed 
the 15 foot maximum height. After some discussion, it was concluded that not enough information 
was provided to the Commission in order to make a fully-informed decision. Mr. Bondanza 
recommended the continuation of the public hearing to the next regularly scheduled meeting so that 
they applicant can return with a presentation and more detailed information.  
 
MOTION: Mr. Bondanza moved to continue the public hearing for File #5; Apln #1582 to the next 
regular meeting on June 15, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. in Room F of the Community Center. Mr. Thiesse 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 
3. File #402; Apln #1587; 143+145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B; Special 

Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay 
District; and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a 
multi-unit dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner – Due to a legal notice defect, the opening of the 
public hearing for this application will need to be postponed until the next regularly scheduled meeting.  
 
MOTION: Mr. Thiesse moved to postpone the opening of the public hearing for File #402; Apln #1587 to 
the next regular meeting on June 15, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. in Room F of the Community Center. Mr. Baldwin 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ACTIONS: 
 
1. File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; 

Special Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington 
River Protection Overlay District; Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site 
Plan Application; request to construct single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, 
applicants/owners 

 
MOTION: Mr. Bondanza moved that the Commission hereby APPROVES File #445; Apln #1576; 594 
Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; Special Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, 
removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington River Protection Overlay District; 
Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Section 9.1., Site Plan Application; request to construct 
single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners 

 
This approval with conditions and modifications is made, in part, on the basis of, and the 
Commission’s reliance upon, the application form dated February 12, 2016; information received at a 
public hearing commenced on March 16, 2016, continued to April 20, 2016, and continued to May 18, 
2016 and closed on that date; and upon the following documentation submitted by the Applicant or 
others during the course of the proceedings on the application: 

 
Drawings: 

 
1. Sheet 1; Zoning Location Survey; 594 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by Robert Green Associates, 

LLC; Prepared for David and Jacqueline Mott; Dated December 18, 2015; Revised February 9, 
2016 

2. Sheet 2; Miscellaneous Notes & Details; 594 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by Robert Green 
Associates, LLC; Prepared for David and Jacqueline Mott; Dated December 18, 2015; Revised 
February 9, 2016 



3. Sheet 3; Zoning Location Survey; 594 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by Robert Green Associates, 
LLC; Prepared for David and Jacqueline Mott; Dated December 18, 2015; Revised April 15, 2016 

4. Sheet 4; Miscellaneous Notes & Details; 594 Albany Turnpike; Prepared by Robert Green 
Associates, LLC; Prepared for David and Jacqueline Mott; Dated December 18, 2015; Revised 
April 15, 2016 

5. Sheet 5; Development Plan; Route 44; Prepared by Joseph Adams & Associates; Prepared for 
Casey Heights; June 1983; Revised February 7, 1986 
 

Correspondence: 
 

1. Town of Canton Planning/Zoning Development Application – File #445; Apln #1576; 594 Albany 
Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; Special Permit, Section 6.3.F.2, 
removal of trees 4” or greater in caliper within the Farmington River Protection Overlay District; 
Section 7.5, earthwork and grading; and Site Plan Application, Section 9.1.; request to construct 
single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners 

2. Site Plan Application checklist 
3. Special Permit Application checklist 
4. Copy of payment; check #6054 
5. FVHD approval; dated 1/29/16 
6. Proposed scope of work for tree removal by Bristol’s Tree Service, LLC; dated 2/3/16 
7. Abutters map 
8. List of abutters 
9. Affidavit for posting of public hearing sign per Section 9.9.F of Zoning Regulations; dated 2/23/16 
10. Photo depicting placement of public hearing sign 
11. Copy of the abutter notice sent to abutting property owners; dated 2/23/16 
12. Photographs of certified mailing receipts 
13. Municipal abutter notice sent to the Town of New Hartford; dated 2/23/16 
14. Aerial photograph of property (2 total) 
15. Photograph depicting elevation of property 
16. Town of Canton legal notice 
17. Proof of legal notice from the Hartford Courant; dated 3/1/16 
18. Draft minutes from the 3/16/16 PZC regular meeting 
19. Draft minutes from the 3/10/16 IWWA regular meeting 
20. Letter from the Farmington River Coordinating Committee to the Town of Canton Board of 

Selectmen regarding proposed residential development within the River Protection Overlay Zone; 
dated 4/11/16 

21. Email communication between Liz Lacy of the Farmington River Coordinating Committee and 
Neil Pade regarding FRCC concerns; dated 4/12/16 

22. Email from Dave Mott to Neil Pade regarding a revised aerial photo; dated 4/20/16 
23. Aerial photograph; received by the Land Use Office via email on 4/20/16 
24. Letter from Sarah Faulkner to the PZC; dated 4/20/16; received at the public hearing on 4/20/16 
25. Draft minutes from the 4/20/16 PZC regular meeting 
26. Letter from Eileen Fielding of the Farmington River Coordinating Committee to Sarah Faulkner; 

dated 4/27/16 
27. Signed consent for extension of statutory time (CGS, Chapter 8-7d); received 5/6/16 
28. Email from Neil Pade to Renee Narducci pertaining to Eileen’ Fielding’s 5/12/16 letter to the 

Canton IWWA 
29. Letter from Eileen Fielding of the Farmington River Coordinating Committee to the Canton IWWA; 

dated 5/12/16 
30. Email from Neil Pade to Renee Narducci pertaining to the PZC draft motion for consideration; 

dated 5/12/16 
 

This approval with conditions and modifications is granted because the Commission finds that the 
application, as conditioned and modified by and inclusive of the stipulations of this approval, would 
comply with the following: 

 



1. The property is an approved building lot; 
2. The developable area of the property is constrained by a 75’ ROW to the MDC; 
3. The area of the property in which the proposed structure is to be located is relatively bare/ limited 

ground cover and vegetation in its present condition; 
4. The applicant has agreed to mitigate potential disturbances within the FRPO review area that 

may be affected by the installation of the deck and building foundation; 
 

This approval is effective June 7, 2016 (20 Days from approval date) and UPON THE RECORDING 
OF AN APPROVAL LETTER AND A CERTIFICATE OF ACTION WITH THE TOWN CLERK.  

 
The Commission hereby grants this approval subject to the following conditions, modifications, 
restrictions, and safeguards: 
1. The conditions of the Canton IWWA permit issued on May 12, 2016 shall be incorporated by 

reference; 
2. The applicant shall plant four (4) trees within the FRPO subject to the review and approval of the 

ZEO; 
3. A Mylar recording is NOT required; 
4. Provide replacement with a like number of trees to mitigate the removal of trees and preserve the 

characteristics of the lot; 
5. All work in connection with this site plan shall be completed within five years after the approval, or 

May 18, 2020 in accordance with Section 9.1.G.2 of the regulations; 
6. The failure to record this special permit within twelve (12) months of approval shall void the 

special permit in accordance with Section 9.2.H.1 of the regulations; 
7. The approved use must be conducted on the site within thirty-six (36) months from the date of 

approval or the approval shall expire; and 
8. This approval shall be binding upon the applicant/developer, heirs, assigns, and grantees.  

  
Mr. Thiesse seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 
2. File #5; Apln #1582; 150 Torrington Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 5300150; Zone R-1; 

Section 7.4.D.3.a., Special Permit; exemptions and modifications to outdoor lighting, and 
Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to install CCTV cameras, site lighting and security 
fencing; Metropolitan District Commission, applicant/owner – No action was taken. 
 

3. File #402; Apln #1587; 143+145 Main Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcels 3590143; Zone B; Special 
Permit, Section 6.1.E, uses allowed by Special Permit within the Collinsville Business Overlay 
District; and Section 9.1., Site Plan Modification; request to rehabilitate the existing building into a 
multi-unit dwelling; Russell Bush, applicant/owner – No action was taken. 
 

OLD BUSINESS: None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: None 
 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
1. Review minutes from the April 14, 2016 Joint Special Meeting, April 20, 2016 Regular Meeting 

and May 4, 2016 Special Meeting – The minutes were approved as presented.   
2. Discussion of Possible Edits to Zoning Regulations – Staff is currently working on regulations for 

electronic message board signs, signage regulations for the Collinsville Business District Overlay, 
and updating the zoning regulations regarding Design Review Team (DRT) references. 

3. Discussion of Design Regulations – A Special Meeting will be scheduled for Wednesday, June 8, 
2016 at 6:30 p.m.; location to be determined. 

4. Discussion of Subdivision Regulations Rewrite – The Commission briefly discussed four 
questions that were provided by Town Planner Neil Pade; however, they decided to hold off on 
making a final decision until the next regularly scheduled meeting so that Neil was present for the 
discussion. 



5. Staff Reports: 
a. Town Planner’s Report – None 
b. ZEO Report – The ZEO Report was distributed to the Commission prior to the start of the 

meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
MOTION: Mr. Evens moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:37 p.m. Mr. Thiesse seconded the motion, which 
passed unanimously.  
 
 



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

Canton, Connecticut Inc. 1806
4 Market Street, Collinsville, Connecticut 06022

MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning and Zoning Commission

FROM: Emily Anyzeski, Assistant Town Planner, ZEO, IWWA Agent

SUBJECT: Application File #156 – Potential Zoning Regulation Amendments, Electronic
Message Board Signs

DATE: June 10, 2016

As discussed over the past several months, the Commission is considering initiating a Zoning
Regulation Amendment Application to regulate electronic message boards within the Town.

The following language has been prepared for your consideration:

Possible amendments to Section 7.3.F.9 – Electronic Message Board Signs

7.3.F.9. Electronic Message Board Signs – As defined in Section 2.2, electronic message
board signs are permitted in accordance with the following conditions:

a. Electronic message board signs are prohibited in Residential Zoning Districts;

b. The surface area copy may not change more frequently than twice every 24 hours, and
once every 12 hours;

c. The change of copy shall occur simultaneously for the entire electronic sign face. The
time to complete the change from one message to the next is a maximum of one second;

d. Electronic message boards shall contain a default mechanism that will cause the sign to
revert immediately to a black screen if a malfunction occurs;

e. Electronic message boards shall have no revolving, flashing, moving, scrolling, rotating,
or similar intermittent lights or features that stimulate movement;

f. An electronic message board display may not be animated, play video or audio messages
or blink in any manner;



2

g. An electronic message board display shall consist only of alphabetic or numeric
characters on a plain background and may not include any graphic, pictorial, or
photographic images;

h. Electronic message boards shall not exceed a maximum illumination of 5,000 nits during
daylight hours and a maximum illumination of 500 nits for the time period between ½
before sunset and ½ hour after sunrise as measured from the sign’s face at maximum
brightness;

i. The applicant shall provide a written certification from the sign manufacturer that the
light intensity has been factory preset not to exceed the levels specified above, and
the intensity level is protected from end-user manipulation by password protected
software or other appropriate methods.

ii. The change from 5,000 nits to 500 nits shall be controlled by an automatic dimmer
control system.

i. There shall be only one electronic message board on each parcel of land;

j. Each electronic message board shall be permanently installed or located;

k. Electronic message boards shall not be located within X feet of a traffic light;

l. Electronic message boards shall not exceed 30% of the sign surface up to a maximum of
32 square feet



82 Canton Design Village Districts Form-Based Code September 8, 2015
FINAL

PERMITTED USES IN DESIGN VILLAGE DISTRICTS

RESIDENTIAL
Building Form Standard Storefront Cottage
Design Village District C HC CV EG C only C HC CV EG C HC CV EG CV only

single-family detached dwelling units P P2 P P P P P P2

single-family attached dwelling units P P1 P P1 P P P P P1 P P1

two-family dwellings (duplex) P P1 P P1 P P P P P1 P P1

accessory dwellings P P1 P P1 P1 P P P P P P1 P P1 P1

multi-family dwellings P P1 P P1 P1 P P P P P P1 P P1 P1

boarding house P P P P P1 P P P P P P P P P
group home P P P P P P P P P P P P P
senior living facility P P P P P P P P P P P P
home-based business - minor P P P P P P P P P P P P P P
bed and breakfast P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

COMMERCIAL
Building Form Standard Storefront Cottage
Design Village District C HC CV EG C C HC CV EG C HC CV EG CV

retail and service business P P P P P P P P P P P P
alcoholic beverage sales P P P P P P P P P P P P
licensed medical marijuana dispensary P P P P P P P P P P P P
restaurant (any class, no drive-through facilities) P P P P P P P P P P P P
restaurant (drive-through facilities at rear of building) P P P P P P P P P
outdoor dining accessory use P P P P P P P P P P P P
greenhouse accessory use P P P P P P P P P P P P
lcoal artists/craftsman studios P P P P P P P P P P P P
personal service business P P P P P P P P P P P P
professional offices P P P P P P P P P P P P
banks (no drive-through facilities) P P P P P P P P P P P P
banks (drive-through facilities at rear of building) P P P P P P P P P
day care centers and group day care P P P P P P P P P
motels and hotels P P P P P P P P P P
residential health care and rehabilitation facility P P P P P P P P P
skilled nursing facility P P P P P P P P P
assisted living facility P P P P P P P P P
structured parking P P P P P P P P
automobile repair (no automotive paint shops) 3 P P P P P P P P
automobile dealers and repairers 3 P P P P P P P P
motor vehicle renting and leasing 3 P P P P P P P P
gasoline filling stations P P P P P P P P P
lumber yards P
printing and publishing P P P P
research facilities and commercial laboratories P P P P
fabrication/assembly (electronic and computer equipment) P P P
warehousing and storage (no self-storage units) P P
utility facilities (no tanks) P P

Notes
1 no residential uses permitted on ground floor
2 no single-family detached dwelling units permitted on Albany Turnpike/Rt. 44
3 requires Type II Design Plan

Main Town Detached

Main Town Detached

B. Permitted Uses



 

 

 

Town of Canton, CT    7 

Appendix A 

Town of Canton 

Standard Zoning Enforcement Procedure Flow Chart 













 

TOWN OF CANTON  
LAND USE OFFICE   

4 Market Street, Collinsville, Connecticut  06022 
 

 

 

 

Memorandum  

 

To: Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency 

 

From: Emily Anyzeski, Assistant Town Planner, ZEO, IWWA (860) 693-7892  

 

Re: File #06-16-1134; 10 East Hill Road; Assessor Map 30; Zone R1; Parcel 2430010; 

Expansion of skate park in upland review area; Josh Medeiros, applicant; Town of 

Canton, owner. 

  

Date: June 6, 2016 

 

 

Proposal 
 

Applicant is looking to renovate the existing skate park at 10 East Hill Road as part of a STEAP 

grant awarded to the town by adding a skate plaza feature built into the hill. The edge of the 

addition will run parallel with the 352’ elevation line shown on Sheet 2 of the submitted 

materials.  

 

A row of silt fences will be added south of the existing skate park to protect the surrounding 

wetlands as shown on Sheet 2 of the submitted materials.  

 

 

Waivers 

 

Waivers are being sought from: 

 

 Section 7.4d (The geographical location and description of the land in sufficient detail to 

allow identification of the properties, the wetlands, the watercourses, the area to be 

disturbed, waiving only identification of soil types and wetland vegetation),  

 7.4e (The purpose and description of the activity, proposed E&S controls management 

practices, mitigation measures, waiving only identification of measures to restore, 

enhance, and create productive wetland or watercourse resources),  

 7.4g (Site plan on a scale of at least 1” = 40’ showing proposed activity, existing and 

proposed conditions relating to wetlands and watercourses, associated or inevitable 

activity that may impact wetlands or watercourses) 

 7.4h (Names and addresses of land owners within 100 feet of property boundary) N/A if 

significant impact activity determined or public hearing called.  

 7.4m (Any other information the Agency deems necessary) 



2 

 7.5f (Analysis of chemical or physical characteristics of any fill material).  

 

 

Exhibits 

 

The following exhibits have been received: 

 

List of Drawings – Submitted May 31, 2016 

 

1. Mills Pond Park, Skate Park, Canton CT; Existing Layout; Sheet 1; May 31, 2016 

2. Mills Pond Park, Skate Park, Canton CT; Proposed Addition; Sheet 2; May 31, 2016 

3. Mills Pond Park, Skate Park, Canton CT; Erosion Control; Sheet 3; May 31, 2016 

4. Mills Pond Park, Skate Park, Canton CT; Proposed Grading; Sheet 4; May 31, 2016 

5. Mills Pond Park, Skate Park, Canton CT; Proposed Elevations; Sheet 5; May 31, 2016 

6. Mills Pond Park, Skate Park, Canton CT; Proposed Dimensions; Sheet 6; May 31, 2016 

 

Correspondence:  

1. Town of Canton Planning/IWWA Application – File #06-16-1134; 10 East Hill Road; 

Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 2430010; Zone R-1; Request to expand the current skate park 

within the Upland Review Area; Josh Medeiros, applicant; Town of Canton, owner 

2. Memo from Joshua Medeiros from the Canton Parks and Recreation Department to the 

IWWA regarding the proposed skate park; dated April 6, 2016 

3. Email from George Wallace to Emily Anyzeski regarding the plans for the proposed 

skate park; dated May 31, 2016 

 

Inventory of Regulated Areas 

 

The wetlands boundaries are shown on sheets 1-3 of the submitted materials. The proposed area 

of work is in the Upland Review Area.  

 

Permitted Uses as of Right and Non-Regulated Uses 

 

All activities in wetlands or watercourses involving filling, excavating, dredging, clear cutting, 

clearing, or grading… shall require a permit from the Agency in accordance with Section 6 of 

these regulations. (Section 4.3) 

 

Activities Regulated by the State 

 

n/a 

 

Application Requirements 

 

7.1 Application Form – Submitted 

7.2 Subdivision/Re-Subdivision – N/A 

7.3 Other information and fee – Submitted 



3 

7.4 Application Requirements – Staff has reviewed the information submitted by the applicant, 

and it meets the requirements of this section  

7.5 Significant Impact Activity Requested – To be determined by the Agency.  

7.6 Adjoining Municipality Buffer – N/A 

7.7 Copies of Plans – Submitted 

7.8 Renewal or Amendment of Existing Permit – N/A 

7.9 Renewal of Existing Permit – N/A 

7.10 Subject to a Conservation Restriction or Preservation Restriction – N/A 

7.11 Waivers – Discussed on page 1 

 

 

 

Public Hearings 

 

A petition has not been filed. The Agency should determine if the proposal is a significant 

impact activity under Section 2.cc. A site walk is recommended prior to making such a 

determination.  

 

Feasible and Prudent Alternatives / Staff Comment 

 

The determination of a significant impact activity has not yet been made. If there is any concern 

from the Agency that wetlands may be negatively affected by the proposed activities, feasible 

and prudent alternatives or an explanation of other alternatives considered.  

 

It should be noted that the proposed footprint of the skate park addition is much smaller than in 

previous discussion. Changes were made to minimize disturbance as well as to add locational 

improvements. The original location was significantly closer to the baseball field adjacent to the 

skate park, and cut perpendicularly up the slope. This was adjusted for the back wall of the 

proposed addition to run parallel with the contours of the site.  

 

 

Statutory Time  

 

This application was received at the June 9, 2016 meeting. The Agency has 65 days to take 

action on this application or schedule a public hearing (August 13, 2016). 

 

 

 

 

 














	06-15-16 Agenda
	06-15-16 Working Notes
	File 5; Apln 1582
	File 402; Apln 1587
	File 448; Apln 1601
	Pre-Application; File 449; Apln 1602
	File 22; Apln 1605
	05-18-16 Draft Minutes
	Electronic Message Board Signage
	Form-Based Code Use Table
	Standard Zoning Enforcement Procedures
	IWWA Skate Park Application

